
 

COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ 
General Services Department 

Purchasing Division 

701 OCEAN STREET, SUITE 330, SANTA CRUZ, CA 95060-4073 

ADDENDUM #1 
Request for Proposal RFP 22P3-005 

FOR 
Crisis Stabilization Program and/or Psychiatric Health Facility 

Issued January 20, 2023 
 

This addendum (#1) is being issued to answer questions posed by prospective vendors regarding  
RFP 22P3-005. 
 
Vendor #1 
1. Question:  Does a service provider submitting a proposal for #22P3-005 FOR Crisis Stabilization Program 
and/or Psychiatric Health Facility have to be an existing crisis services provider in California to be considered 
and finally chosen for this contract?  Can an out of state crisis services provider with no existing contracts for 
services in California be selected? 
Answer:  HSA has set a requirement that providers should currently be operating in California. 

2. Question How do patients of the Santa Cruz County PHF/CSP benefit by Section 6.1 as opposed to having 
a vendor who meets all of Section 5.1 requirements and does not yet have a presence in California?  
Answer:  HSA has set a requirement that providers should currently be operating in California. 

3. Question: Section 9.1 Requires only a statement of "pending litigation".  It would be informative and 
beneficial to Santa Cruz County to review a history of any relevant litigation.  I request this be added to Section 
9.1: 

A. Pending Litigation 
B. Proposer must disclose any pending litigation including: 
C. Location filed, name of court and docket number 
D. Nature of litigation 
Answer:  We are unable to add additional requirements once the RFP has been released. 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Vendor #2 

1. PDF page 6, Section 2: Instructions to Proposers – “Respondent shall submit one (1) original signed in 
blue ink and marked as ‘ORIGINAL’ and one (1) electronic copy (USB drive) of the completed proposal 
as specified herein.” May bidders submit proposals using electronic signature (through AdobeSign) 
rather than signed in blue ink? If not, please confirm whether all signatures are needed in blue ink. 
Answer: The County will accept secure digital signatures if printed in hard copy. These 
signatures and documents must still be sent via hard copy format, not via email. 
 

2. PDF page 19, Section 6: Scope of Work: HSA Minimum Vendor Requirements – “Successfully 
developing and operating mental health CSP specific to adults and/or youth.” Please confirm that these 
programs will serve adults only.  
Answer:  These programs will serve adults only. 



 
3. PDF page 5, Section 1 – INVITATION, it states that services are requested for “(1) Mental Health Crisis 

Stabilization Program (CSP) for adults; and/or (2) 16-bed locked Psychiatric Health Facility (PHF) for 
adults.” However, in the last paragraph of the same page it states, “[t]he BHC is designated to 
accommodate individuals seeking emergency psychiatric services who are presenting voluntarily or 
involuntarily, pursuant to Welfare and Institution Code (WIC) 5150/5585”. WIC 5588 is a code referring 
to a minor. Can the County please confirm that both the CSP and PHF will only serve adults (i.e., 
individuals who are 18 years and older)? 
Answer:  Both the CSP and PHF will serve individuals age 18 and older. 

4. PDF page 26, Section 9: Official RFP Form – “Proposal packages are limited to 50 pages, inclusive of 
all budgetary and staffing data, required forms and affidavits, and letters of endorsement.”  

a. If bidders include attachments to support the narrative, will those pages be counted toward the 
50-page limit?  
Answer:  Attachments inclusive of requirements above will be counted toward the 50 page 
limit.    

b. Can the County please confirm that bidders Audited Financial Statements will not be counted 
toward the 50-page limit? Three years of our Audited Financial Statements are 60+ pages 
alone.   
Answer: Audited Financial statements are not counted towards the 50-page limit. 

5. If bidders would like to propose providing both the PHF and CSP services, can bidders submit a 
single/combined proposal? Or, does the County require two separate proposals/two separate 
packages? 
Answer: If bidders are proposing for both programs, they can combine into one proposal, 
however questions requiring a response specific to each program must be answered for each 
program. 
 

6. If bidders are to submit a single/combined proposal to operate both the PHF and CSP services, is the 
page limit for all requirements still 50 pages in total?  
Answer: If bidders submit a combined proposal, the 50-page limit is waived, however the total 
pages should not exceed 100 pages. 
 

7. PDF page 40, Attachment #4 of the RFP, questions 4-10, respondents are directed to provide a 
response for each program. Can the County please confirm if these are the only questions that require 
unique responses for each program? 
Answer:  Questions requiring a response for each program are clearly indicated in the 
instructions. 
 

8. PDF page 23, Section 8.15 Indemnity, and Insurance Requirements – “Contractor shall provide 
Certificates of Insurance for Liability, Automobile, and Workers’ Compensation to Purchasing before 
Contract is signed.” 

9. PDF page 35, Exhibit F. Insurance Requirements: Can the County please confirm that bidders do not 
need to submit any documentation or narrative statement(s) in response to Exhibit F Insurance 
Requirements (including Exhibit F itself) and that this is included as an “FYI” for the eventual contractor 
to meet?  
Answer: Exhibit F is provided for informative purposes to provide proposers with information 
on the standard County insurance requirements. 
 

10. Can the County please provide an Excel File version of Attachment #2: Cost Proposal Worksheet? We 
are unable to access this link via the published RFP.  
Answer: The link has been corrected. Click here to download the document.  

https://www.co.santa-cruz.ca.us/Portals/0/County/GSD/Purchasing/Solicitations/22P3-005/22P3-005%20Attachment%202%20-%20Cost%20Proposal%20Worksheet.xlsx?ver=pamAF6mWVlBbk-vRpPGVhw%3d%3d


 
11. Can the County please provide an Excel File version of Attachment #3: Staffing Configuration 

Worksheet? We are unable to access this link via the published RFP.  
Answer: The link has been corrected. Click here to download the document. 
 

12. Does the County have a preferred font and font size for Attachment 4: RFP Question Response? If so, 
please confirm what they are. 
Answer: Arial 12 point is preferred. Font should be legible to the average reader and no larger 
than 14 point. 
 

13. PDF page 19, Section 6: Scope of Work: HSA Minimum Vendor Requirements, Subsection 6.1.B 
includes “Successfully developing and operating mental health CSP specific to adults and/or youth” as 
an HSA Minimum Vendor Requirement. Can the County please confirm if it is accepting applications 
from organizations with experience only serving the youth population? 
Answer:  Experience serving the youth population in a mental health CSP will be acceptable. 
 

14. Can the County confirm the release time the Q&A/Addendum will be posted on Friday, January 20? 
Given the due date for the proposal, we would be grateful for the Addendum to be posted as early in 
the day as possible.  
Answer: The addendum may be release on or before January 20, 2023 per the RFP Process 
Schedule. The number of vendor questions and time required to answer them will play a role in 
how quickly the addendum can be released. 
 

15. May bidders include photos in their proposal submissions? Or are narratives strictly limited to word 
responses? 
Answer:  Photos are accepted, however, they will count toward the page limit. 
 

16. May bidders propose the number of chairs for the CSP? 
Answer:  Yes, bidders may propose the number of chairs, however, we will be looking to ensure 
proposals meet the community need. 
 

17. May bidders propose the number of beds for the PHF? 
Answer:  Yes, bidders may propose the number of beds, however, we will be looking to ensure 
proposals meet the community need. 
 

18. What level of acuity (specifically in relation to level of danger to others) is acceptable vis a vis our ability 
to serve other clients safely? 
Answer:  The level of acuity and safe operations should meet the requirements of a licensed 
CSP and/or PHF. 
 

19. What level of flexibility does the bidder have in determining the program’s exclusionary criteria? For 
example, may bidder propose to exclude serving clients originating from the jail setting? 
Answer:  The CSP and PHF serve the whole community. 
 

20. Are these programs required to be 5150-receiving facilities? 
Answer:  Yes. 
 

21. Is the County willing to waive the requirement for the PHF to be Joint Commission Accredited? 
Answer:  Joint Commission accreditation is not a requirement. 
 

  

https://www.co.santa-cruz.ca.us/Portals/0/County/GSD/Purchasing/Solicitations/22P3-005/22P3-005%20Attachment%203%20-%20Staffing%20Configuration%20Worksheet.xlsx?ver=RqEwJFFnA1OvYFayFIJYgw%3d%3d


22. Can the County provide a copy of RFP pages 26-37 in as either a Word Document or editable PDF 
form? 
Answer: This document has been uploaded here: Click here to access the document. 

New Questions (Added 1/12/23)  

23. Can the County please provide the names of the organizations that attended the pre-proposal 
conference? 
Answer: The Sign in Sheet is available here: Click here to access the document. 
 

24. In Attachment 4 Each question indicates a maximum number of words that can be provided per 
response. For example, "Describe, in detail, your understanding of and experience with the priority 
population, including: (250 words maximum)." Could the County please confirm that the maximum 
number of words is PER program type (250 per PHF and 250 per CSP response) or TOTAL (250 words 
per PHF and CSP response combined)? 
Answer:  250 words is the maximum for EACH program. 
 

25. Can responses to questions in Attachment 4 include footnotes? If so, will the County count the text in 
the footnotes towards the total word count limit? For example, a response that may have a total of 245 
words with a 5-word sentence as a footnote will be counted as a response with 250 words. 
Answer: Footnotes can be excluded from the 250-word limit. 
 

26. Can the County please confirm that restating the questions in Attachment 4 in the narrative will not 
count against the word count limit? 
Answer:  It is not necessary to restate the questions as part of the response.  All words in the 
narrative will count towards the word limit (excluding footnotes). 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 
Vendor #3 

1) At the time of RFP submission does the vendor have to provide any licensure or certification 
documentation to be an eligible vendor? If yes, what licensure or certifications are needed? 
Answer:  The vendor proposal should reflect an understanding of licensure and demonstrate 
the ability to achieve licensure if they do not currently hold a license to operate a PHF or CSP.  
For example, they may be licensed to provide a similar program in another County. 
 

2) On page 18, 5.1. Phase One – how long is Phase One going to be open for the vendor to obtain 
licensure and certification?  
Answer:  The County declines to directly address this question within this addendum, as there 
are too many variables to consider at this time in order to answer it fully. The County plans to 
negotiate specific details regarding implementation of services with the top-ranked responsive 
proposer. 

3) Depending on the timeframe for Phase One - Would an extension be granted for the performance 
period if there are delays in obtaining Medicaid licensure in CA? 
Answer:  The County declines to directly address this question within this addendum, as there 
are too many variables to consider at this time in order to answer it fully. The County plans to 
negotiate specific details regarding implementation of services with the top-ranked responsive 
proposer. 
 

4) Is there maximum amount of County funds that are available to use as supplemental payments from 
Medi-Cal, Medicare and private insurance? (page 38)  
Answer:  The County declines to directly address this question within this addendum, as there 
are too many variables to consider at this time in order to answer it fully. The County plans to 

https://www.co.santa-cruz.ca.us/Portals/0/County/GSD/Purchasing/Solicitations/22P3-005/22P3-005%20Typable%20Version%20of%20Pg%2026-37.pdf?ver=_Z3Pm3VWXh89wP7eAO1Smw%3d%3d
https://www.co.santa-cruz.ca.us/Portals/0/County/GSD/Purchasing/Solicitations/22P3-005/22P3-005%20Web%20Conference%20Sign%20In%20Sheet.pdf?ver=PlTJkdJRLk4W7aG2ZRWpRw%3d%3d


negotiate specific details regarding implementation of services with the top-ranked responsive 
proposer. 
 

5) Is there data available on claims generated for the past year or two of the CSP and PHF? 
Answer:  The County declines to directly address this question within this addendum, as there 
are too many variables to consider at this time in order to answer it fully. The County plans to 
negotiate specific details regarding implementation of services with the top-ranked responsive 
proposer. 
 

6) Is there historical data on the facility lease monthly costs? 
Answer:  The County declines to directly address this question within this addendum, as there 
are too many variables to consider at this time in order to answer it fully. The County plans to 
negotiate specific details regarding implementation of services with the top-ranked responsive 
proposer. 
 

7) Is there historical data (monthly average amounts) on the page 13, 3.7. Facility items the vendor is 
responsible for including the utilities, telecom, janitorial services, repairs, routine maintenance? 
Answer:  The County declines to directly address this question within this addendum, as there 
are too many variables to consider at this time in order to answer it fully. The County plans to 
negotiate specific details regarding implementation of services with the top-ranked responsive 
proposer. 
 

8) Is there a maintenance limit amount maximum cap that the vendor is responsible to cover until the 
County responsibility for maintenance occurs?  
Answer:  The County declines to directly address this question within this addendum, as there 
are too many variables to consider at this time in order to answer it fully. The County plans to 
negotiate specific details regarding implementation of services with the top-ranked responsive 
proposer. 
 

9) If we are allowed IDC and Admin… is there a combined maximum or are we only allowed one or the 
other? 
Answer:  The County declines to directly address this question within this addendum, as there 
are too many variables to consider at this time in order to answer it fully. The County plans to 
negotiate specific details regarding implementation of services with the top-ranked responsive 
proposer. 
 

10) Are executive travel expenses allowed as pre-operations expenses? 
Answer:  The County declines to directly address this question within this addendum, as there 
are too many variables to consider at this time in order to answer it fully. The County plans to 
negotiate specific details regarding implementation of services with the top-ranked responsive 
proposer. 
 

11) Are Medi-Cali and health plan consultant expenses allowed as pre-operations expenses?  
Answer:  The County declines to directly address this question within this addendum, as there 
are too many variables to consider at this time in order to answer it fully. The County plans to 
negotiate specific details regarding implementation of services with the top-ranked responsive 
proposer. 

  



All other information remains the same. 
January 16, 2023 was the deadline for all questions regarding this RFP. No further questions will be accepted 
by Purchasing. 

 
RFP SUBMITTAL DEADLINE REMAINS UNCHANGED. 
RFP DUE: 
Friday, January 27, 2023, by 5:00 PM 
In the Purchasing Division of General Services 
701 Ocean Street, Room 330 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 
 

 

 
           01/20/23 
Shauna Soldate         Date 
Shauna.Soldate@santacruzcounty.us 
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